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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFA SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS #2 SUMMARY
	RFA NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202208125 - Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Innovation Grants Funding Opportunity

	RFA ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, 
Office of Aging and Disability Services

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS #2 DUE DATE:
	September 29, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time. (as amended on 9/14/22)

	QUESTION & ANSWER #2 SUMMARY ISSUED:
	October 14, 2022

	APPLICATIONS DUE DATE:
	November 8, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.

	APPLICATIONS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	If one applies for a certain amount of funds and is granted them, but does not use them all, does one return the remaining monies or put them towards another innovative project?

	
	Answer

	
	Funds approved for a specific project as outlined in the resulting contract may not be utilized for other innovative projects and must be returned to the Department, unless approved by the Department.  
The Department anticipates paying the awarded Applicant on the basis of net thirty (30) payment terms, upon the receipt of an accurate and acceptable invoice.  An invoice will be considered accurate and acceptable if it contains a reference to the State’s contract number, contains correct pricing information relative to the contract, and provides any required supporting documents, and any other specific and agreed-upon requirements listed within the contract that results from the RFA.


Q&A #2 Summary continues next page

	2
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	I see that the maximum award amount is listed at $500,000. I was wondering if this was per project, or if this is the total amount of allowable funding across all projects?

	
	Answer

	
	The maximum award amount of $500,000 is per each project (submitted application). The Department reserves the right to eliminate the lowest scoring application(s), approve or deny any funding requests, and/or make awards at amounts less than that requested, whichever is in the best interest of the State. 


	3
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	The service we would be proposing would be a service that’s typically billed on a month-to-month basis. Given this, the budget form that’s part of the application is sort of inapplicable. There aren’t really any “costs” beyond the monthly service itself. I’m wondering if we would still be required to fill this out, and if so, to just use our best efforts?

	
	Answer

	
	Applicants are required to complete the budget and narrative forms included in the application.  The Department may require the awarded Applicants to provide additional budget information during contract negotiations.  


	4
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	The application asks for a requested award amount. The service we would be proposing is typically billed on a month-to-month basis. 
a. Would we request an amount that is proportionate to the number of members we think we would be able to serve? 
b. If so, the Evaluation Plan Template asks for the amount of grant funding that’s remaining at the conclusion of the project. Is this to be returned within a certain time frame? 
Just want to make sure we would be fully complying with the rules set forth. 

	
	Answer

	
	a. It is at the Applicant’s discretion to determine the total funds being requested, refer to Application Evaluation and Selection” B. 3rd paragraph of the RFA.
b. The Department will advise each awarded Applicant if and when any unused funding from the result contract needs to be returned.


	5
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Our entity is always seeking grant money to support internships, for projects such as cyber safety outreach to vulnerable populations like older adult, which are an integral part of the program. 

a. Is this a proper venue to apply? 

b. If so, may I get the right link so that I can get the documents?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department will determine if a project meets the intent of the RFA (refer to the Details and Instructions within the RFA) through the Application Evaluation and Section requirements outlined in the RFA. 
b. The links to the Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) - Innovation Grants Funding Opportunity are available at the Division of Procurement Services Grant RFAs and RFAs website, specifically under RFA 202208125 and Q&A Summary & Amendment #1.


	6
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Can you please advise – we cannot submit an application if we are not currently CMS certified? 

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the Q&A Summary & Amendment #1 issued September 14, 2022.


	7
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Eligibility
	We are not a certified Medicaid program but receive a large volume of inquiries for this service from individuals, families and healthcare providers looking for what we offer but have only Medicaid insurance. Does the below statement include or exclude this Home and Community Based program from participation in this grant project? 
In order to be eligible for grant funding, Applicants must be:
1. A current provider of CMS-funded services;

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the Q&A Summary & Amendment #1 issued September 14, 2022.


	8
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Eligibility
	Regarding Eligibility, #3 states "In good standing as a service provider with Department (i.e., has no corrective actions or sanctions...)"  

Would having a Corrective Plan of Action for HCBS Settings Rule changes preclude a provider, therefore making them ineligible?  

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	9
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Can two agencies apply together?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.  However, the application must name the lead agency who will be responsible for the contract resulting from this RFA, if awarded.


	10
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	I understand the grant is looking for agencies that are waiver providers.  However, we are not an agency receiving waiver funding at this time. Our focus is to work solely with adults with ID or Autism receiving waiver services.  For this grant, we are in partnership with a waiver provider.

	
	Answer

	
	As there is no question posed the Department declines to respond.


Q&A #2 Summary continues next page

	11
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Is the below idea in alignment with the goals and objectives of the Innovation Grants Funding?

We are considering a proposal to create an internal “UBER” service. Funding would be used for a wheelchair van and driver costs. (The driver would have a DSP certification). The UBER program would provide us the tools to greatly enhance HCBS services to the residents who reside in our 18 group homes. Currently, if all residents in a group home do not want to participate in a group outing it precludes the entire group from having the outing due to staffing issues. (i.e., there are not enough staff to both go on the outing and remain at the residence with individuals who do not want to participate.) The internal UBER program would allow customized outings for a resident or partial groups of residents to access and engage with the greater community more often and in more varied ways.

	
	Answer

	
	No, the Department intends on providing one-time grant funding to approved Applicants for the implementation of projects which are currently outside the scope of MaineCare services, that upon successful completion, must comply with the HCBS rule Waiver Section 21 (MaineCare Manual 21.05-1), Section 29 (29.05-01), Section 19 (19.04-1 to 3), as well as Section 18 (18.05-1) and Section 20 (20.05-1), including related Office of MaineCare Services (OMS) and Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) rules and regulations.


	12
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Are supplemental materials allowed to be included with the proposal? For example, letters of commitment? 

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder's discretion how to respond to all sections of the RFA.


	13
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Can links to supplemental videos be included to be reviewed as supplemental materials to the proposal?

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	14
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	If selected for funding, would it be possible to include funding for a training that will be produced in July 2024? 

	
	Answer

	
	Applicants may propose deliverables beyond March 2024. However, there is no guarantee that the Department will be extending contracts beyond March 2024. 


	15
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	If the Grant funding was extended beyond March 2024, would additional funding be available, or would the approved budget need to be stretched to extend beyond March 2024? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not anticipate additional funding to be available beyond the initial award amounts. 


	16
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	What is the target total length for the narrative portion of the proposal: Proposed Project Activities?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder's discretion how to respond to all sections of the RFA.


	17
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Approximately when will applicants be notified about which projects have been selected for funding? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department declines to answer.


	18
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	The eligibility criteria state that the applicant be a current provider of CMS-funded services.  
a. Would an innovative program such as a type of supportive housing alternative need to have a CMS-authorized provider partner(s) be the applicant for the grant?  
b. Or can the non-CMS funded organization apply directly for the grant as long as a CMS-authorized organization(s) is listed as an involved partner? 
c. Or, the non-CMS funded organization is collaborating with CMS providers as part of the overall project/service model?  
Please clarify

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the Q&A Summary & Amendment #1 issued September 14, 2022.
b. Yes.
c. Yes.


	19
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Our organization is embarking on a complex, multi-year project that will create a new model to address SDOH and current inequities, lack of sufficient resources, and promote the independence and health of Section 19 participants, with a targeted go live date of early 2024.  
Can the grant monies be used during 2023 for the planning and start-up costs associated with building out the integrated programming and associated technology required for this model?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will determine if a project meets the intent of the RFA (refer to the Details and Instructions within the RFA) through the Application Evaluation and Section requirements outlined in the RFA.


	20
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Did not provide
	Will the Department consider projects that would modify existing eligibility criteria for home health and telehealth services? More generally, will proposals be eligible for ARPA grant funding as a demonstration project that may ultimately require permanent waivers or exemptions from existing criteria, benefits, or policies.  The demonstration project would, as part of a proof of concept for a new integrated delivery model, provide evidence for future, ongoing funding/reimbursement.

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will determine if a project meets the intent of the RFA (refer to the Details and Instructions within the RFA) through the Application Evaluation and Section requirements outlined in the RFA.
This grant opportunity is not funded by American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding.
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